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From: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot>  
Sent: 18 February 2025 14:13 
To: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Cc: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot>; [redact – personal information]@gov.scot>; 
[redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Subject: RE: FOI Request - Approval of FOI 202400440819 
 
Thanks [redact – personal information], I’ve made a few minor wording tweaks.  
Otherwise content to clear.  
Thanks 
[redact – personal information] 
 
[redact – personal information] 
Head of Active Scotland | Scottish Government |  
 [redact – personal information] | [redact – personal information]@gov.scot  
 
 
From: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot>  
Sent: 11 February 2025 08:35 
To: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Cc: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot>; [redact – personal information]@gov.scot>; 
[redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Subject: FW: FOI Request - Approval of FOI 202400440819 
 
Hi [redact – personal information] 
 
Please see the below FOI which is number 202500449507. Also below is the draft 
response and attached is the information, highlighted for redaction, for points 2 and 
4. 
 
Grateful for comments/clearance? 
 
Deadline for the case is 20 February. 
 
Many thanks 
 
[redact – personal information] 
 
REQUEST UNDER THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION (SCOTLAND) ACT 2002 
(FOISA) 
 
Thank you for your request dated 23 January 2025 under the Freedom of 
Information (Scotland) Act 2002 (FOISA). 
 
Your request 
 
You asked for: 



1. Which special advisers or ministers signed off or approved the freedom of 
information response given the reference number 202400440819 (both on 9 and 13 
December 2024). 
  
2. The full email threads which discussed the initial draft freedom of information 
response, all comments, changes, amendments and feedback given on the original 
draft and subsequent drafts of the freedom of information response until the 
response was finalised and sent to me on 9 December 2024. Please state which 
ministers (including officials from their private offices) and special advisers were 
copied into the email threads discussing the draft freedom of information response. 
 
3. The correspondence between Scottish Government officials, ministers and special 
advisers that led to a revised freedom of information response being submitted to 
myself on 13 December 2024. Please state which ministers (or officials from their 
private office) and special advisers were copied into the email threads discussing the 
draft freedom of information response including the comments and edits that were 
suggested to the original copy of the response that was sent to me on 9 December 
2024 until the final revised response was approved and sent on 13 December 2024. 
 
4. When the Scottish Government responded to the Mail on Sunday story detailing 
revelations of the lack of notes of Neil Gray’s football match meetings (the article 
was entitled ‘How was Gray’s visit to Open official business?’) with the line ‘Ministers 
attending events in a ministerial capacity are entitled to use government transport’, 
please provide any draft version of this comment and all edits, amendments and 
feedback suggested by ministers, officials and/or special advisers before the final 
comment was signed off and sent out to the journalist in response to the story. 
Please state which ministers (including officials from their private offices) and special 
advisers were copied into the email threads discussing the draft response to this 
story and clarify which minister or special adviser, if any, approved the comment for 
release. 
 
Response to your request 
1. As both the request and the information to be released were not deemed 
sensitive, the original and revised responses were cleared by the Head of Active 
Scotland. No Minister or Special Advisor approved or signed off on either response 
as per normal process. It should be noted that Special Advisors can provide advice 
on FOIs, but do not clear them. 
 
2. I enclose a copy of most of the information you requested. While our aim is to 
provide information whenever possible, in this instance we are unable to provide 
some of the information you have requested because an exemption under section 
38(1)(b) personal information of FOISA applies to that information. This exemption 
applies to some of the information requested because it relates to people below the 
grade of a senior civil servant. 
 
3. As the error in the original response, dated 9 December, was due to a simple copy 
and paste error, the revised response dated 13 December did not require any formal 
clearance. This is a formal notice under section 17 - no information held. 
 
4. I enclose a copy of most of the information you requested. While our aim is to 



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
 
[redact – personal information] | Delivery & Policy Officer | Active Scotland |Scottish Government | 
Ground East, St Andrews House, Edinburgh, EH1 3DG | Email: [redact – personal 
information]@gov.scot 
 
From: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> On Behalf Of Freedom of Information 
Sent: 24 January 2025 09:25 
To: Central Correspondence Unit <CentralCorrespondenceUnit@gov.scot> 
Cc: Freedom of Information <foi@gov.scot> 
Subject: FW: FOI Request - Approval of FOI 202400440819 
 
Hi CCU,  
 
This request has been identified as a standard FOI request. 
 
Please: 
 

• Upload this request using the standard CCU FOI process.  
• Please return to the FOIU unit for triaging.  

 
Thank you, 
 
FOI Unit 
 
 
[redact – personal information] 
FOI Advisor  
Freedom of Information Unit| Improving Public Engagement Division| Directorate for 
Communications and Ministerial Support| DG Corporate 
St Andrews House 
Scottish Government  
 
 
From: [redact – personal information]  
Sent: 23 January 2025 17:03 
To: Central Correspondence Unit  
Subject: FOI Request - Approval of FOI 202400440819 
 
Good a�ernoon, 
 
May I request the following informa�on under freedom of informa�on legisla�on:  
 

1) Which special advisers or ministers signed off or approved the freedom of informa�on 
response given the reference number 202400440819 (both on 9 and 13 December 2024).  

 



2) The full email threads which discussed the ini�al dra� freedom of informa�on response, all 
comments, changes, amendments and feedback given on the original dra� and subsequent 
dra�s of the freedom of informa�on response un�l the response was finalised and sent to 
me on 9 December 2024. Please state which ministers (including officials from their private 
offices) and special advisers were copied into the email threads discussing the dra� freedom 
of informa�on response.  
 

3) The correspondence between Sco�sh Government officials, ministers and special advisers 
that led to a revised freedom of informa�on response being submited to myself on 13 
December 2024. Please state which ministers (or officials from their private office) and 
special advisers were copied into the email threads discussing the dra� freedom of 
informa�on response including the comments and edits that were suggested to the original 
copy of the response that was sent to me on 9 December 2024 un�l the final revised 
response was approved and sent on 13 December 2024.  

 
4) When the Sco�sh Government responded to the Mail on Sunday story detailing revela�ons 

of the lack of notes of Neil Gray’s football match mee�ngs (the ar�cle was en�tled ‘How was 
Gray’s visit to Open official business?’) with the line ‘Ministers atending events in a 
ministerial capacity are en�tled to use government transport’, please provide any dra� 
version of this comment and all edits, amendments and feedback suggested by ministers, 
officials and/or special advisers before the final comment was signed off and sent out to the 
journalist in response to the story. Please state which ministers (including officials from their 
private offices) and special advisers were copied into the email threads discussing the dra� 
response to this story and clarify which minister or special adviser, if any, approved the 
comment for release. 
 

I have atached the two freedom of informa�on responses, the first sent on 9 December, the second 
sent on 13 December, for your convenience. To be clear they both cover the same topics but the 
later was a revised response sent a�er an inaccuracy was detected by the Sco�sh Government.  

 
Thank you for your assistance. 
 
[redact – personal information]  
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From: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot>  
Sent: 09 December 2024 12:28 
To: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Cc: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Subject: RE: CORRECTED FoI Request: Neil Gray ministerial visit 17 December 2023 
 
Happy to approve, thank you. 
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
Sent: 09 December 2024 09:22 
To: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Cc: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Subject: FW: CORRECTED FoI Request: Neil Gray ministerial visit 17 December 2023 
 
Hi [redact – personal information] 
 
Please see the below draft response which will issue with Doc 003 which you have 
already seen. 
 
Thanks 
 
[redact – personal information] 
 
REQUEST UNDER THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION (SCOTLAND) ACT 2002 
(FOISA) 
 
Thank you for your request dated 12 November 2023 under the Freedom of 
Information (Scotland) Act 2002 (FOISA). 
 
Your request 
 
You asked for, in relation to Neil Gray attending the Aberdeen v Rangers match on 
17 December 2023: 
How many Scottish Government officials accompanied Mr Gray to this ministerial 
engagement? 
Plesase supply all information in the ministerial briefing given to Mr Gray for this 
event and all notes or minutes resulting from the event. 
Please also supply all information in the correspondence between Mr Gray, or his 
office, and the person or body which invited him, in relation to his attendance. 
This should include, but not be limited to, all information in the invitation and in any 
follow-up correspondence. 
  



Response to your request 
  
I enclose a copy of most of the information you requested.  Exemptions under 
sections 29(1)(a), 33(1)(b) and 38(1)(b) of FOISA apply to some of the information 
you have requested. This means we have redacted information linked to section 
29(1)(a) on the formulation or development of government policy; section 33(1)(b) 
where disclosure would, or would be likely to, prejudice substantially the commercial 
interests of any person or organisation; and section 38(1)(b) relating to personal 
details of members of the public and Scottish Government officials under the grade 
of Senior Civil Servant.   
  
An exemption under section 29(1)(a) of FOISA (formulation or development of 
government policy) applies to some the information requested because it relates to 
the development of the Scottish Government’s policy  as regards specific aspects of 
football on which we are currently considering our approach.  This exemption is 
subject to the ‘public interest test’.  Therefore, taking account of all the 
circumstances of this case, we have considered if the public interest in disclosing the 
information outweighs the public interest in applying the exemption.  We have found 
that, on balance, the public interest lies in favour of upholding the exemption.  We 
recognise that there is a public interest in disclosing information as part of open, 
transparent and accountable government, and to inform public debate.  However, 
there is a greater public interest in high quality policy and decision-making, and in 
the properly considered implementation and development of policies and 
decisions.  This means that Ministers and officials need to be able to consider all 
available options and to debate those rigorously, to fully understand their possible 
implications.  Their candour in doing so will be affected by their assessment of 
whether the discussions on the policies will be disclosed in the near future, when it 
may undermine or constrain the Government’s view on that policy while it is still 
under discussion and development. 
  
An exemption under section 33(1)(b) of FOISA (commercial interest) applies to some 
the information requested because it relates to ongoing negotiations regarding a 
funding proposal under the fan bank.  This exemption is subject to the ‘public interest 
test’.  Therefore, taking account of all the circumstances of this case, we have 
considered if the public interest in disclosing the information outweighs the public 
interest in applying the exemption.  We have found that, on balance, the public 
interest lies in favour of upholding the exemption.  We recognise that releasing the 
information would be of interest to the public but it could adversely impact on 
sensitive discussions between those involved in the proposal and the finalisation of 
the transaction. 
  
In terms of how the visits were arranged and who accompanied Mr Gray, the 
Scottish FA regularly invites Ministers to international matches and domestic cup 
finals and semi-finals. These provide a good opportunity to engage with a number of 
football stakeholders on current key issues. Invitations are sent to the Scottish 
Government by the organising body, either the Scottish Football Association or the 
Scottish Professional Football League, and, as with any engagement invitation, 
officials provide advice to Ministers on potential attendance. 
  
For each of these three visits, Mr Gray was accompanied by a Scottish Government 



official and a guest.  The names of these attendees are withheld under Section 
38(1)(b) (personal information). 
 
Your right to request a review 
 
If you are unhappy with this response to your FOI request, you may ask us to carry 
out an internal review of the response, by writing to Richard Foggo, Director for 
Population Health, C/O FOI@gov.scot and C/O FOI Unit 1E.10, St Andrew’s House, 
Regent Road, EDINBURGH EH1 3DG]. Your review request should explain why you 
are dissatisfied with this response, and should be made within 40 working days from 
the date when you received this letter. We will complete the review in accordance 
with FOISA as soon as possible, and not later than 20 working days from the day 
following the date we receive your review request. 
 
If you are not satisfied with the result of the review, you then have the right to appeal 
to the Scottish Information Commissioner. More detailed information on your appeal 
rights is available on the Commissioner's website at: 
What can I do if I'm unhappy? | Scottish Information Commissioner 
(itspublicknowledge.info) 
 
[redact – personal information] | Delivery & Policy Officer | Active Scotland |Scottish Government | 
Ground East, St Andrews House, Edinburgh, EH1 3DG | Email: [redact – personal 
information]@gov.scot 
 
From: [redact – personal information]@gmail.com>  
Sent: 12 November 2024 14:00 
To: Central Correspondence Unit <ceu@gov.scot> 
Subject: CORRECTED FoI Request: Neil Gray ministerial visit 17 December 2023 
 
This is a request under the Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act 2002. 
 
It should be treated as a single request and not aggregated with others. 
 
The ministerial engagements register records that Neil Gray attended an Aberdeen v 
Rangers football match at Hampden Park on 17 December 2023. 
 
https://www.gov.scot/collections/ministerial-engagements-travel-and-gifts/ 
 
How many Scottish Government officials accompanied Mr Gray to this ministerial 
engagement? 
 
Plesase supply all information in the ministerial briefing given to Mr Gray for this event 
and all notes or minutes resulting from the event. 
 
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
 
Please also supply the government car service log for Mr Gray's travel to and from 
Hampden Park for the event. 
 
In order to fulfil this request as cheaply and efficiently as possible, it is suggested that 
copies of original files are released in PDF format. 
 
I understand there may be a charge for this information. 
 
Please note, this request corrects a similar one sent at 13:48 today which wrongly gave 
the visit date as 19 November 2023 in the subject line. 
 
[redact – personal information] 
 
[redact – personal information] 
[redact – personal information] 
Scottish Daily Mail 
Media Tower 
Scottish Parliament 
Edinburgh 
EH99 1SP 
 
[redact – personal information] 
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From: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot>  
Sent: 09 December 2024 14:50 
To: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Cc: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Subject: RE: Neil Gray 
 
Ok with me, many thanks 
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
Sent: 09 December 2024 14:45 
To: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Cc: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Subject: FW: Neil Gray 
 
Hi [redact – personal information] 
 
Please see the below draft which will be issued with docs 001, 002, 003, 005, 006, 
010, 012, 013, 014, 015, 016, 017 & 021 – all of which you have already seen. 
 
Many thanks 
 
[redact – personal information] 
 
REQUEST UNDER THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION (SCOTLAND) ACT 2002 
(FOISA) 
 
Thank you for your request dated 15 November 2024 under the Freedom of 
Information (Scotland) Act 2002 (FOISA). 
 
Your request 
 
You asked for all correspondence regarding the organisation of Neil Gray’s 
attendance at the following engagements: 

• Scotland vs Poland, Hampden Park on 24 March 2022 
• Scotland vs Ukraine, Hampden Park on 21 September 2022 
• Scotland vs Georgia, Hampden Park on 20 June 2023 
• Hibernian vs Aberdeen, Hampden Park on 4 November 2023 
• Scotland vs Norway, Hampden Park on 19 November 2023 
• Rangers vs Aberdeen, Hampden Park on 17 December 2023 
• Aberdeen vs Celtic on 20 April 2024 
• Aberdeen vs Livingston, Pittodrie Stadium on 15 May 2024. 



 
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
Sent: 15 November 2024 15:23 
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
 
 
From: [redact – personal information]@Parliament.scot>  
Sent: 15 November 2024 14:59 
To: Central Correspondence Unit <ceu@gov.scot> 
Subject: Neil Gray 
 
Hi there, 
 
Can I please request the following informa�on under Freedom of Informa�on legisla�on: 
 

1) All correspondence regarding the organisa�on of Neil Gray’s atendance at the following 
engagements: 

 
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
 

• Aberdeen vs Cel�c on 20 April 2024 
 

• Aberdeen vs Livingston, Pitodrie Stadium on 15 May 2024 
 
For the avoidance of doubt, by correspondence I mean the original invite to these events (or a 
request for an invita�on by Neil Gray or anyone in his private office) and all subsequent 
correspondence arranging for Neil Gray’s atendance at these events, the government business to be 
discussed, other Sco�sh Government atendees at these events, travel arrangements to get to these 
events and the organising of a family member or guest to accompany Neil Gray to these events.  
 

2) Please specifically state for each of these engagements whether Neil Gray (or someone on 
his behalf) requested an invita�on to atend these events, or whether an invita�on was 
offered to Neil Gray by a third party (or someone else in the Sco�sh Government). 

 
Best wishes, 
[redact – personal information] 
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From: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot>  
Sent: 10 December 2024 10:12 
To: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Cc: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Subject: RE: Neil Gray 
 
Fine with me, thanks 
[redact – personal information] 
 
[redact – personal information] 
Head of Active Scotland | Scottish Government |  
 [redact – personal information] | [redact – personal information]@gov.scot  
 
From: [redact – personal information]gov.scot>  
Sent: 10 December 2024 09:57 
To: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Cc: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Subject: FW: Neil Gray 
 
Hi [redact – personal information] 
 
Please see the below draft answer which will be released with docs 002, 006, 013, 
017 and 019 which you have seen. For the athletics events, ME have no notes but 
did confirm he did not bring a guest. 
 
Many thanks 
 
[redact – personal information] 
 
REQUEST UNDER THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION (SCOTLAND) ACT 2002 
(FOISA) 
 
Thank you for your request dated 21 November 2024 under the Freedom of 
Information (Scotland) Act 2002 (FOISA). 
 
Your request 
 
You asked for: 

• Any minutes or summary notes handed to private office relating to meetings 
held at these events  

• How many officials attended these events with Mr Gray 
• What family members/guests Neil Gray took to each of these events 

 
Scotland v Poland – March 24, 2022 – subject listed as Major Events, Ukraine 
Resettlement 
Scotland v Ukraine – September 21, 2022 – subject listed as Ukraine/Culture 
Indoor athletics championships, March 1, 2023 



Viaplay cup semi-final – Aberdeen v Hibs – Nov 4 2023 
Viaplay final – Aberdeen v Rangers – Dec 17 2023 
Scottish cup semi-final – Aberdeen v Celtic – April 20 2024 
Pittodrie Aberdeen v Livingston – May 15 2024 
Scotland v Norway – Nov 19 2023 
Indoor athletics, Glasgow – March 2024. 
 
Response to your request 
 
I enclose a copy of most of the information you requested.  Exemption under section 
38(1)(b) of FOISA apply to some of the information you have requested. This means 
we have redacted information linked to section 38(1)(b) relating to personal details of 
members of the public and Scottish Government officials under the grade of Senior 
Civil Servant.   
 
For each of the football matches, Mr Gray was accompanied by a Scottish 
Government official and a guest.   The names of these attendees are withheld under 
Section 38(1)(b) (personal information). For the athletics events, Mr Gray was 
accompanied by a Scottish Government official. 
 
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
Sent: 21 November 2024 14:47 
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
 
 
From: [redact – personal information]@mailonsunday.co.uk>  
Sent: 21 November 2024 11:51 
To: Central Correspondence Unit <ceu@gov.scot> 
Subject: Neil Gray 
 
Hello, 
 
For each of these matches/events, please provide: 

- Any minutes or summary notes handed to private office relating to meetings held at 
these events  

- How many officials attended these events with Mr Gray 
- What family members/guests Neil Gray took to each of these events 

 
Scotland v Poland – March 24, 2022 – subject listed as Major Events, Ukraine Resettlement 
 
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
 
Indoor athletics, Glasgow – March 2024 
 
 
[redact – personal information]  
[redact – personal information]  
Mail on Sunday  
T: +44 [redact – personal information] 
+44 [redact – personal information] 
E: [redact – personal information]@mailonsunday.co.uk 
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From: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot>  
Sent: 09 December 2024 11:19 
To: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Cc: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Subject: RE: FOI: Neil Gray engagements  
 
Thanks [redact – personal information] – happy with these.  
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
Sent: 05 December 2024 14:08 
To: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Cc: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Subject: FW: FOI: Neil Gray engagements  
 
Hi [redact – personal information] 
 
Please see the below draft response and attached documents. I have only attached 
the docs which you haven’t already seen. 
 
Many thanks 
 
[redact – personal information] 
 
REQUEST UNDER THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION (SCOTLAND) ACT 2002 
(FOISA) 
 
Thank you for your request dated 11 November 2024 under the Freedom of 
Information (Scotland) Act 2002 (FOISA). 
 
Your request 
 
You asked for: 

• Any briefings or visit notes produced for the cabinet secretary or officials 
• Details of Scottish Government officials (including total number and job titles) 

who attended with the Cabinet Secretary 
• Any minutes, notes or entries on the corporate record associated with the 

engagements 
 
For the following ministerial engagements by Cabinet Secretary Neil Gray: 

• 4 November 2023: SFA Social Impact Investment in Sport engagement 
(Hampden Park) 



• 19 November 2023: SFA Social Impact Investment in Sport engagement 
(Hampden Park) 

• 17 December 2023: SFA Social Impact Investment in Sport engagement 
(Hampden Park) 

• 20 April 2024: Men’s Scottish Cup Semi-Final - Aberdeen v Celtic (Hampden) 
• 15 May 2024: Aberdeen v Livingston Football Match (Aberdeen) 

 
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
Scottish FA and SPFL regularly invite Ministers to international matches and 



domestic cup finals and semi-finals. These provide a good opportunity to engage 
with a number of football stakeholders on current key issues. Invitations are sent to 
the Scottish Government by the organising body, either the Scottish Football 
Association or the Scottish Professional Football League, and, as with any 
engagement invitation, officials provide advice to Ministers on potential attendance. 
 
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
Sent: 11 November 2024 15:40 
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
 
 
From: [redact – personal information]@dcthomson.co.uk>  
Sent: 11 November 2024 15:00 
To: Central Correspondence Unit <ceu@gov.scot> 
Subject: FOI: Neil Gray engagements  
 
Good afternoon,  
 
Under FOISA, I would be obliged for you to provide the following information 



• Any briefings or visit notes produced for the cabinet secretary or officials 
• Details of Scottish Government officials (including total number and job titles) who 

attended with the Cabinet Secretary 
• Any minutes, notes or entries on the corporate record associated with the 

engagements 

For the following ministerial engagements by Cabinet Secretary Neil Gray:  
 

1. 4 November 2023: SFA Social Impact Investment in Sport engagement (Hampden 
Park) 

2. 19 November 2023: SFA Social Impact Investment in Sport engagement (Hampden 
Park) 

3. 17 December 2023: SFA Social Impact Investment in Sport engagement (Hampden 
Park) 

4. 20 April 2024: Men’s Scottish Cup Semi-Final - Aberdeen v Celtic (Hampden) 
5. 15 May 2024: Aberdeen v Livingston Football Match (Aberdeen) 

If it is not possible to provide the information requested due to the information exceeding 
the cost of compliance limits identified in Section 12, please provide advice and assistance, 
under the Section 15 obligations of the Act, as to how I can refine my request. 

I would appreciate a prompt response within the timescales allowed for by the Act.  

Kind Regards,  

[redact – personal information] 

Kind Regards, 

[redact – personal information] 

[redact – personal information], The Courier 

[redact – personal information] |  

[redact – personal information]@dcthomson.co.uk 

Albert Square, Dundee, DD1 1DD 

  

https://twitter.com/alasdair_clark
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From: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot>  
Sent: 09 December 2024 12:31 
To: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Cc: [redact – personal information]gov.scot> 
Subject: RE: Neil Gray minutes/note from meetings 
 
Ok, grand 
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
Sent: 09 December 2024 10:54 
To: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Cc: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Subject: FW: Neil Gray minutes/note from meetings 
 
Hi [redact – personal information] 
 
Please see the below draft which will release with docs 002, 006, 013 which you 
have already seen. 
 
Thanks 
 
[redact – personal information] 
 
REQUEST UNDER THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION (SCOTLAND) ACT 2002 
(FOISA) 
 
Thank you for your request dated 14 November 2024 under the Freedom of 
Information (Scotland) Act 2002 (FOISA). 
 
Your request 
 
You asked for the full minutes/notes taken from Neil Gray's ministerial engagements 
at these events: 
Viaplay Cup Semi Final at Hampden Park November 4 
 
Viaplay Cup Final at Hampden Park on 17th December 2023 
  
Scottish Cup Semi-final at Hampden Park on  20th April 2024 
  
Football match at Pittodrie, Aberdeen on 15 May 2024 as a guest of the Aberdeen 
Community Trust. 



 
Response to your request 
 
I enclose a copy of most of the information you requested.  Exemptions under 
section 38(1)(b) of FOISA apply to some of the information you have requested. This 
means we have redacted information relating to personal details of members of the 
public and Scottish Government officials under the grade of Senior Civil Servant.   
 
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
Sent: 14 November 2024 15:51 
To: Central Correspondence Unit <CentralCorrespondenceUnit@gov.scot> 
Cc: Freedom of Information <foi@gov.scot> 
Subject: RE: Neil Gray minutes/note from meetings 
 
Dear CCU,   
   
This request has been identified as a standard FOI request.  
 
Please:  
 

• Upload this request using the standard CEU FOI process.  
• Please return to the FOIU unit for triaging.  

 
Thank you,  
 
FOI Unit  
 
 
From: [redact – personal information]@reachplc.com>  
Sent: 14 November 2024 15:12 
To: Central Correspondence Unit <ceu@gov.scot> 
Subject: Neil Gray minutes/note from meetings 
 
Hi there 
 
I'd like to request information through FOI legislation. 
 
1. Could you supply the full minutes/notes taken from Neil Gray's ministerial 
engagements at these events: 
 
Viaplay Cup Semi Final at Hampden Park November 4 
 
Viaplay Cup Final at Hampden Park on 17th 
December 2023  
 



Scottish Cup Semi-final at Hampden Park on 
20th April 2024  
 
Football match at Pittodrie, Aberdeen on 15 May 
2024 as a guest of the Aberdeen Community Trust. 
 
Cheers 
 
[redact – personal information] 
Scottish Daily Express [redact – personal information] 
[redact – personal information] 
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From: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot>  
Sent: 09 December 2024 13:25 
To: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Cc: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Subject: RE: FOI Request - Cabinet Secretary for HSC - Football Related Ministerial 
Engagements 
 
Thanks, all good with this one. 
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
Sent: 09 December 2024 11:32 
To: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Cc: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Subject: FW: FOI Request - Cabinet Secretary for HSC - Football Related Ministerial 
Engagements 
 
Hi [redact – personal information] 
 
Please see the below draft response which will be published along with docs 001, 
002, 003, 005, 006, 012, 013, 018, 019. You have already seen all of the docs apart 
from 018 which is now attached. 
 
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
a. any briefing provided by civil servants to Mr Gray for the five games in question 
(detailed below). 
b. how many civil servants or government officials were in attendance for each of the 
five games in question, given that these were official ministerial engagements. 
c. any notes or meeting minutes recorded by civil servants/officials at the five games 
in question. 
c. if Mr Gray was formally invited to these five games, the original correspondence 



from the relevant bodies. 
d. any official decisions or reasoning (including all correspondence) for non-
Government officials (i.e. family/friends) to be permitted to attend alongside Mr Gray 
for what was official government business. 
The five specific games in question I refer to: 

• Aberdeen v Hibernian in the Scottish League Cup semi-final at Hampden Park 
(November 2023) 

• Aberdeen v Rangers in the Scottish League Cup final at Hampden Park 
(December 2023) 

• Aberdeen v Celtic in the Scottish Cup semi-final at Hampden Park (April 
2024) 

• Aberdeen v Livingston in the Scottish Premiership at Pittodrie (May 2024) 
• Scotland v Portugal at Hampden Park (October 2024). 

 
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
Sent: 14 November 2024 15:41 
To: Central Correspondence Unit <Contactus@gov.scot> 
Subject: FOI Request - Cabinet Secretary for HSC - Football Related Ministerial Engagements 
 
Good afternoon, 
 
I would like to make an information request under the Freedom of Information 
(Scotland) Act 2002.  
 
On Thursday 15th November 2024, the Cabinet Secretary for Health and Social Care 
made a statement to the Scottish Parliament regarding the use of ministerial cars to 
go to football games. Mr Gray stated all these games were official ministerial visits 
and involved significant engagement with key stakeholders. I would like to request: 
 
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
Government officials (i.e. family/friends) to be permitted to attend alongside Mr 
Gray for what was official government business.  
 
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

• Aberdeen v Celtic in the Scottish Cup semi-final at Hampden Park (April 2024) 
• Aberdeen v Livingston in the Scottish Premiership at Pittodrie (May 2024) 
• Scotland v Portugal at Hampden Park (October 2024) 

Kind regards, 



[redact – personal information] 
Contact: [redact – personal information]@gmail.com   
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From: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot>  
Sent: 16 January 2025 13:56 
To: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot>; [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Subject: RE: Neil Gray/SFA FOI 
 
Thanks, content to clear. 
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
Sent: 16 January 2025 12:13 
To: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Cc: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Subject: RE: Neil Gray/SFA FOI 
 
Thanks [redact – personal information] 
 
[redact – personal information], are you content to clear with [redact – personal 
information] additions? 
 
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
Sent: 14 January 2025 15:04 
To: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Cc: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Subject: RE: Neil Gray/SFA FOI 
 
Thanks.  [redact – free and frank exchange of views] 
 
[redact – personal information].  
 
From: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot>  
Sent: 14 January 2025 14:39 
To: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Cc: [redact – personal information]@gov.scot> 
Subject: FW: Neil Gray/SFA FOI 



 
Hi [redact – personal information] 
 
Please see the below FOI asking for correspondence between Mr Gray, his office 
and the Scottish FA between 15 Sept to 21 Dec 2023 and 1 Feb to 25 April 2024.  
 
Private Office have confirmed no correspondence so I have drafted the below 
response stating section 17 – no information held. 
 
Grateful if you could look over before [redact – personal information] clears? 
 
Deadline for the case is 21 January. 
 
Many thanks 
 
[redact – personal information] 
 
REQUEST UNDER THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION (SCOTLAND) ACT 2002 
(FOISA) 
 
Thank you for your request dated 18 December 2024 under the Freedom of 
Information (Scotland) Act 2002 (FOISA). 
 
Your request 
 
You asked for all email correspondence between Neil Gray/his office and the 
Scottish Football Association, covering the following periods: September 15 2023 to 
21 December 2023, and February 1 2024 to April 25 2024. 
 
Response to your request 
 
The Scottish Government does not have the information you have asked for because 
we have not been able to identify any email (or written) correspondence directly 
between the Scottish FA and the Cabinet Secretary or his office between the specific 
time periods. 
 
This is a formal notice under section 17(1) of FOISA that the Scottish Government 
does not have the information you have requested. 
 
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
Sent: 18 December 2024 08:00 
To: Central Correspondence Unit <ceu@gov.scot> 
Subject: Neil Gray/SFA FOI 
 
Hi there 



 
I’d like to request information through FOI legislation. 
 
1. could you supply all email correspondence between Neil Gray/his office and the 
Scottish Football Association, covering the following periods: September 15 2023 to 21 
December 2023, and February 1 2024 to April 25 2024.  
 
Cheers 
 
[redact – personal information] 
Scottish Daily Express [redact – personal information]  
[redact – personal information] 
 
 


